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[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-010, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17. Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120



(14) University official. Any person employed or contracted by 



[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-030, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17. Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 12-01-021, § 516-21-030, filed 12/9/11, effective 
1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-040  Student responsibility for guests.   (1) Guests 
and visitors on university property or at official university func-
tions are expected to comply with all university policies and proce-
dures, as well as all applicable local, state, and federal laws and 
regulations.

(2) Students who invite guests into their campus residence hall 
or apartment, or to official university functions open only to Western 
students, are responsible for the behavior of their guests. As a re-
sult, a student may be held responsible for any alleged violation(s) 
of the code committed by their guests. See also WAC 516-24-001 Conduct 
of campus guests and visitors.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 1681-1688. WSR 
12-01-021, § 516-21-040, filed 12/9/11, effective 1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-050  Academic dishonesty.  The university's policy and 
procedures regarding academic dishonesty are addressed in the academic 
honesty policy and procedure. As noted in the policy, academic dishon-
esty at Western Washington University is a serious infraction dealt 
with severely. For a list of actions that constitute academic dishon-
esty, refer to the academic honesty policy and procedure in the cata-
log.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 1681-1688. WSR 
12-01-021, § 516-21-050, filed 12/9/11, effective 1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-055  Amnesty.  (1) In situations involving intoxica-
tion, alcohol poisoning, or drug-related medical issues, students are 
encouraged to seek swift medical assistance for themselves and others 
without fear of penalty. Students requesting and receiving medical as-
sistance in these situations will not typically be subject to the stu-
dent conduct process. This policy refers to isolated incidents and 
does not excuse students who repeatedly or flagrantly violate the al-
cohol or drug policy, nor does it preclude action arisimf�吀





WAC 516-21-090  False information.  Providing or creating false 
information is a violation of the code. False information includes, 
but is not limited to:

(1) Forging, altering, mutilating, or destroying any university 
document or record, or entering false information into such documents 
or records;

(2) Possessing or presenting as authentic any falsified document, 
record, or identification;

(3) Intentionally making false accusations or charges against an-
other member of the university community; and

(4) Knowingly providing false information or statements to any 
university official or other public official acting in performance of 
their duties.





possession, use, distribution, or sale of alcohol while on university 
property or at an official university function is a violation of the 
code. See also Policy Concerning Alcohol and Other Drugs in the appen-
dices section of the university catalog.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-130, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17. Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 12-01-021, § 516-21-130, filed 12/9/11, effective 
1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-140  Drugs and paraphernalia.  Except as permitted by 
law and university policy, the possession, use, cultivation, manufac-
turing, packaging, distribution, or provision of a controlled or ille-
gal substance or the possession of drug paraphernalia while on univer-
sity property or at an official university function is a violation of 
the code. This code violation also includes the intentional misuse or 
distribution of prescription drugs. See also Policy Concerning Alcohol 
and Other Drugs in the appendices section of the university catalog.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-140, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17. Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 12-01-021, § 516-21-140, filed 12/9/11, effective 
1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-150  Interfering with the conduct process.  Interfer-
ing with the conduct process is a violation of the code. This in-
cludes, but is not limited to:

(1) Giving a false report or claim;
(2) Attempting to influence the impartiality of witnesses or ap-

peals board member(s);
(3) Participating in or encouraging retaliation against a com-

plainant or witness;
(4) Threatening, harassing, or intimidating complainants or wit-

nesses;
(5) Disrupting or interfering with the orderly conduct of a hear-

ing or meeting; and
(6) Failing to comply with any sanction(s) imposed as the result 

of a code violation.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-150, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17. Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 12-01-021, § 516-21-150, filed 12/9/11, effective 
1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-160  Misuse of computers, electronic data or communi-
cation systems.  Misuse of computers, electronic data, or communica-
tion systems is a violation of the code. This includes, but is not 
limited to:

(1) Unauthorized entry into a file, web page, email account, or 
online profile to use, download, read, transfer, or change the con-
tents, or for any other purpose;
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(2)



willingness to engage in sexual activity and the conditions of such 



WAC 516-21-184  Dating violence.  Conduct by a student who is or 
has been in a romantic or intimate relationship with another that in-
tentionally or recklessly causes bodily injury or places another in 
reasonable fear of serious bodily injury is a violation of the code. 
The nature of the relationship is determined by the length, type, and 
frequency of interaction between them. Sexual violence includes sexual 
assault, dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking or any other 
type of sexual misconduct or gender-based discrimination.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-184, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17.]

WAC 516-21-186  Domestic violence.  Conduct by a student who is a 
current or former spouse or intimate partner (including between two 
people that share a child in common) that intentionally or recklessly 
causes bodily injury, or causes another to be in reasonable fear of 
serious bodily injury is a violation of the code. Sexual violence in-
cludes sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, and stalk-





[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 1681-1688. WSR 
12-01-021, § 516-21-210, filed 12/9/11, effective 1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-215  Violation of university policy, rule, or regula-
tion.  Violation of any published university policy, rule, or regula-
tion is a violation of the code.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-215, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17.]

WAC 516-21-220  Weapons and destructive devices.  Possession, 
use, storage, or manufacture of firearms, ammunition, explosives, or 
other weapons or destructive devices capable of causing bodily injury 
or damage to property, on university property or at official universi-
ty functions, is a violation of the code. Weapons and destructive de-
vices include, but are not limited to, the unauthorized use or posses-
sion of:

(1) Firearms or projectile devices of any kind, including BB, 
pellet, paintball, and airsoft guns, bow and arrow, and sling shots;

(2) Martial arts weapons of any kind, including nunchucks, 
swords, or throwing stars;

(3) Fireworks of any kind;
(4) Dangerous chemicals;
(5) Any knife with a blade longer than three inches (excluding 

kitchen utensils); and
(6) Weapons classified as dangerous in RCW 9.41.250.
This does not include the lawful possession of any personal pro-

tection spray device authorized under RCW 9.91.160.
See also WAC 516-52-020 Weapons and armaments prohibited.

[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12). WSR 18-17-176, § 516-21-220, 
filed 8/22/18, effective 9/22/18. Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, 
chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 
516-21-220, filed 2/15/17, effective 3/18/17. Statutory Authority: RCW 
28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 1681-1688. WSR 12-01-021, § 516-21-220, 
filed 12/9/11, effective 1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-230  Sanctions.  Sanctions serve many purposes includ-
ing, but not limited to, educating students about the seriousness of 
their actions; reinforcing the high standards of scholarship and be-
havior expected of Western students; promoting student development; 
and maintaining the safety and well-being of members of the university 
community. When a student admits responsibility or is found in viola-
tion of the code, a conduct officer or dean of students may impose one 
or more of the sanctions listed in this section. This list of sanc-
tions is not meant to be exclusive. Other sanctions, designed or in-
tended to enhance the educational value of conduct proceedings, may be 
applied in a given case.

(1) Warning. A formal written notice to the student that a viola-
tion of the code has occurred, and that further violations may result 
in additional sanctions under the code.
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(2) Conditional status. A probationary status imposed for a spe-
cific period of time, during which the student must demonstrate con-
duct that conforms to university standards. Conditions restricting the 
student's privileges or eligibility for activities may be imposed. Vi-
olations of any conditions specified in the notice of conditional sta-
tus or violations of any other university policies or regulations dur-
ing the period of the sanction, may result in additional sanctions un-
der the code.

(3) Loss of privileges. A student may be denied specific privi-



Failure to meet any condition(s) specified in the notice of deferred 
suspension will result in immediate suspension from the university.

(13) Expulsion from the university. A student may be permanently 
separated from the university. A student who has been expelled is not 
eligible for readmission.



(6) Conduct officers, the appeals board, and the dean of students 



schedule allows attendance at the scheduled date and time for the 
scheduled meeting or hearing. The o䠀̀



(b) Poses an immediate danger to the safety or security of the 
university community; and/or

(c) Poses an ongoing threat of serious disruption or interference 
with the normal operations of the university.

(2) During the interim suspension, a student may be denied access 
to university activities and privileges, including access to classes, 
university property, and/or campus residence halls and apartments.

(3) A student suspended from the university on an interim basis 
shall be notified in writing of the terms of the interim suspension. 
The notice, which shall be delivered via email to the student's offi-
cial university account and in person if possible, shall include the 
alleged violation(s), the circumstances, reasons, and terms of the in-
terim suspension, and the time, date and location of a meeting to dis-
cuss the interim suspension.

(4) The interim suspension meeting shall occur no fewer than 
three business days and no more than seven business days from the date 
that the notification is sent. The student may elect to waive the 



findings from Western Washington University's equal opportunity office 
(or their designee) will be provided to the conduct officer in lieu of 
the conduct officer's investigation. The conduct officer will then 
consider this report and make a finding as to whether the code was 
violated and impose sanction(s).

(4) Any student charged by a conduct officer with a violation of 
the student code is provided at least three days written notice of the 
student's meeting date, time and location. Any request to extend the 
time and/or date of the conduct officer meeting should be addressed to 
the conduct officer. The written notice shall include:

(a) A brief summary of the complaint, including the sections of 
the code allegedly violated;

(b) The approximate time and place of the alleged behavior that 
forms the factual basis for the charge of violation;

(c) The time, date, and place of the meeting;
(d) A copy of, or link to, the code.
(5) The respondent and complainant (if applicable) are notified 

in writing of the determination made by the conduct officer, including 
the basis for any findings and sanctions. The notice includes informa-
tion regarding the right to request an appeal.

(6)



discrimination, a complainant may also request an appeal. An appeal 
may be requested for any reason including:

(a) The proceedings were not conducted in conformity with pre-
scribed procedures and significantly impacted the outcome of the stu-
dent conduct process;

(b) The sanctions imposed are substantially disproportionate to 
the violation(s) committed;

(c) The decision reached did not properly consider the informa-
tion presented; and/or

(d)





(b) Will not be shared with any member of the public, except upon 
the informed written consent of the student(s) involved or as stated 
in the student records policy, or as required by law or court order.

(2) The conduct officer's findings may be shared with the com-
plainant, as required by law, in cases involving violence or sexual 
violence, including sexual assault, dating violence, domestic vio-
lence, and stalking or any other type of sexual misconduct or gender-
based discrimination. The findings may also be shared with university 
officials involved in the completion or supervision of the sanction 
and/or the student. See also chapter 516-26 WAC, Student records.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-310, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17. Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 12-01-021, § 516-21-310, filed 12/9/11, effective 
1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-330  Interpretation of the code.  Any question of in-
terpretation or application of the code shall be referred to the dean 
of students for final determination.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 1681-1688. WSR 
12-01-021, § 516-21-330, filed 12/9/11, effective 1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-340  Revision of the code.  The code shall be reviewed 
every five years or more often, if needed, by the committee on the 
student conduct code. The committee on student rights and responsibil-
ities shall include students, faculty, and staff. Once recommendations 
are complete, they will be forwarded to the vice president for enroll-
ment and student services. See also POL-U1000.11 Developing and Main-
taining University Provisions of the Washington Administrative Code.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120, chapter 34.05 RCW, and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 17-05-100, § 516-21-340, filed 2/15/17, effective 
3/18/17. Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 
1681-1688. WSR 12-01-021, § 516-21-340, filed 12/9/11, effective 
1/9/12.]

WAC 516-21-350  Referenced policies and regulations in the code. 
Policies or regulations referenced in the code are available, upon re-
quest, in the dean of students' office.
[Statutory Authority: RCW 28B.35.120(12) and 20 U.S.C. 1681-1688. WSR 
12-01-021, § 516-21-350, filed 12/9/11, effective 1/9/12.]
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